
NEW HAMPSHIRE 

Local Government Center 

August 21, 2013 

Harrell Kirstein 
New Hampshire Democratic Party 
105 North State Street 
Concord, NH 03301 

Dear Mr. Kirstein: 

I am responding to your Right-to-Know request in which you asked for copies of: 

"All documents and correspondences, both electronic and print, from 
the past 90 days, relating to following: 

The hiring process for the New Hampshire Local Government Center's 
Executive Director. Including but not limited to any public or private listings 
or advertising of the listings, the dates of those listing, and any internal or 
external communication related to the hiring process. 

Any internal discussion or communication related the duties and/or 
recruitment of Executive Director of the New Hampshire Local Government 
Center. Including but not limited to their role as a lobbyist with the State of 
New Hampshire, their expected weekly hourly commitment, desired 
qualifications, and involvement with any subsidiaries of the LGC. 

Any communication, correspondence or other documents from Peter 
Bragdon or other individuals seeking information about the Executive 
Director position with the New Hampshire Local Government Center. 

Any information supplied by Peter Bragdon relating to his qualifications for 
the position. 

Any communication between the LGC and the Senate on relating to the 
legislative study committee appointed to review potential changes to the state 
law that regulates the LGC." 
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While the Right-to-Know law does not require a public body to create records in response to a 

request, in the interest of full transparency, I would like to take the opportunity to first describe 

the hiring process for the Executive Director to replace me after my term as Local Government 

Center’s (LGC) Interim Executive Director was finished. Note that while I served as Interim 

Executive Director of LGC, and provided executive director services to the two risk pools, 

HealthTrust and Property-Liability Trust, and the Real Estate entity that owns the office 

building, I did not serve as interim executive director to the New Hampshire Municipal 

Association (NHMA).  Judy Silva served in that capacity and continues to do so even after the 

hiring of Peter Bragdon. 

  

To plan for the hiring process of an Executive Director to succeed me, I met with the chairs of 

the separate boards that govern the separate components of the organization, LGC; LGC 

HealthTrust, LLC (HealthTrust); LGC Property-Liability-Trust, LLC (PLT); NHMA, LLC; and 

LGC Real Estate, Inc.  The Chairs expressed concerns that as a result of the ongoing legal battles 

facing the organization, it would be difficult to recruit and hire a high quality permanent 

Executive Director through the typical job posting/national search route.  The Chairs were 

committed that once the organizations resolve the pending legal issues they could then be in a 

better position to do a full nationwide search.  Thus, LGC did not post a public job 

announcement at this juncture.  

 

Instead, the Chairs brainstormed about 5 individuals that they asked me to reach out to and 

explore their interest in serving as my replacement.  The discussion with the Board Chairs 

centered on finding someone with the leadership skills and business acumen who could help 

resolve the pending litigation.  If after I contacted an individual to ascertain his or her interest in 

the position and he or she decided to apply, the candidate met with me and the chairs of the 

various boards.  The plan was for the board chairs to individually recommend a candidate to their 

respective boards.  The Board Chairs gathered with me to discuss identifying possible successors 

and to consider interested candidates on the following dates:  July 2, 2013; July 12, 2013; July 

25, 2013; and August 9, 2013.  The Board chairs met with Peter Bragdon to discuss his interest 

in the position on July 25
th

 and again on August 9
th

.   

 

When the Chairs of the Boards met with potential candidates they discussed the difficulty in 

resolving the pending appeal to the Supreme Court.  They also discussed the job expectations.  

The Chairs were not looking for a lobbyist to serve as Executive Director.  Lobbyist activities 

were not considered an integral part of the Executive Director functions nor was lobbying 

activities a topic of conversation with the candidates.  Candidates were told that they would have 

no supervisory role over or responsibilities to the New Hampshire Municipal Association as that 

organization decided to have a separate Executive Director.  It was explained that the new LGC 

Executive Director would provide executive director services to HealthTrust and PLT, but that 

PLT may want to have its own separate executive director at some point in the future.  This is all 

set out expressly in Peter Bragdon’s contract, which is also attached.   

 

What is not attached are records pertaining to internal personnel practices.  These are exempt 

from disclosure under the Right-to-Know Law pursuant to RSA 91-A:5, IV.  Additionally 

personnel and other files, whose disclosure would constitute invasion of privacy, are similarly 
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exempt under that provision.  Thus, internal communications and documents related to the hiring 

practices are not available for disclosure under the law.  Neither are external communications 

with individuals who were contacted to consider the position or who were not chosen for the 

position as that would constitute personnel and other files, the disclosure of which would 

constitute an invasion of their privacy.  Communications between the LGC Counsel and LGC 

personnel are also exempt from disclosure as they are attorney-client privileged communications.   

 

However, while the above referenced exemptions may apply to Peter Bragdon, out of an interest 

in transparency he has requested that we release all communication, correspondence or other 

documents from Peter Bragdon relative to the hiring process, including the resume he provided.  

Thus, those are attached but his private phone numbers and personal email address have been 

redacted.  

 

Finally, there are no documents responsive to your request for communication between the LGC 

and the Senate relating to the legislative study committee appointed to review potential changes 

to the state law that regulates the LGC.  I am unaware of any discussions between LGC and 

Senator Bragdon or anyone in the Senate relating to the legislative study committee appointed to 

review potential changes to the state law that regulates public risk pools. 

 

I hope you find my response informative and thorough.   

  

Sincerely, 

 
George Bald 

Interim Executive Director, Emeritus  

 

Enclosure 




























































